WESTLAKE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY 2014-2015 INTERMEDIATE BAND PROGRAM

Mrs. Karen Kurtz, Director KKurtz@WestlakeChristian.org



Course Description:

Intermediate Band is for students in grade 4 or higher who are in their second year or more of performance on a band instrument or are performing on a secondary instrument. The prerequisite for this class is successfully completing Beginning Band or a year of instrumental music instruction. Students must be able to perform grade level 1 to 2.5 band music. String students may be accepted to this program with approval of the director.

Intermediate Band Schedule:

- <u>Full band rehearsals</u> will be held twice weekly on Tuesday mornings from 8:15 9:00 a.m. in the gym and Thursday mornings from 7:30-8:10 a.m. in the vocal room. Rehearsals will begin on Tuesday, September 2nd, 2014. On Tuesdays, students must arrive in time to be in their seat —with their instrument assembled and ready to play by 8:15 a.m. If Concert Band is still rehearsing as students arrive, they are to wait in the gym and observe the end of the rehearsal. Thursday morning, the students need to arrive and be in their seats ready to perform by 7:30.
- Intermediate Band student will receive a <u>weekly group lesson of 30 minutes</u>. The lesson may be scheduled in the mornings Monday-Thursday or on Tuesday & Wednesday afternoons. It takes approximately 2-3 weeks for the director to set up a consistent lesson schedule for all the students in 4th-8th grade enrolled in band. WCA students are taken out of class for their weekly lesson. Band lessons take place in the band office next to the stage in the gym.

ATTENDANCE POLICY

- **Definition:** To be counted present, students are to be in their seats with instruments assembled and music ready for performance at 8:20 on Tuesdays, and 7:30 on Thursdays. The director recommends that students be in the building 10 minutes before rehearsals start for ample time to be prepared.
- Concerts: Attendance at concerts is mandatory except for extreme illness, death in the family or engagements of long standing where the director has been given advance notice in writing twelve (12) weeks in advance for programs listed on the school & music department calendar, three (3) weeks or more for programs not listed on the school & music department calendar.
 - Band students must be seated in time for the warm-up and tuning session before performances. Students not arriving in time to be warmed up and tuned with their respective band may not be allowed to perform. Parents anticipating a problem getting their child to the performance area on time need to notify the director so that transportation arrangements can be made in advance.
- Rehearsals Two Weeks Prior to Concerts: Additional rehearsals, i.e. dress rehearsals are scheduled in the weeks before the concerts. The director will hand out a departmental calendar listing those rehearsals. Students missing rehearsals the week before, or the week of a concert may not be allowed to perform. Students who have been ill or have had a death in the family may be allowed to perform after their readiness to perform has been evaluated by the director. Although it may be difficult, vacation times should not be scheduled during concert times if a student expects to be in the school band program.

(Note: The director DOES NOT conduct band rehearsals on a performance day.)

Class and Lesson Attendance: Band is a graded, curricular class. Attendance at lessons and rehearsals is
mandatory. If a student is well enough to be at school, they are expected to participate in band. The
parent is to contact the director via e-mail at kkurtz@westlakechristian.org or send a doctor's note to the
school office explaining the reason for lack of participation in band rehearsals or lessons.

<u>Note:</u> Please understand that when a student "forgets" or is late on a band day, the absence or tardy affects the entire band or lesson group, as we cannot "make up" rehearsals or lessons. In the case of lessons, the <u>entire</u> week's instruction is missed and this puts the student behind the rest of the band in skills learned. (In the case of excused absence from lessons, I will do what I can to reschedule the lesson on another day in that week if possible.)

Practice Requirements and Grades:

Practice outside of school instructional time is critical to the growth and success of all music students! Intermediate Band students are expected to practice 30 minutes, 4 days per week outside of school and be present at all rehearsals and the group lesson to receive an "A". Students will either find a practice journal inside their lesson book to record daily practice or be given one to put in their lesson book.

- Starting with the first lesson, students will be required to fill out the practice journal in ink and have a parent initial the journal weekly. The director will give two letter grades per week based on the practice journal/lesson (4 days per week outside of the school day and parent signature receives an "A", 3 days per week a "B", etc.) and attendance/performance at rehearsals. Factoring into mid-quarter and quarter grades are practice time, unexcused tardies and unexcused or excessive absences. Students will receive a band grade on their report card.
- If a student is ill, out of town, has had dental/orthodontic work and cannot practice, <u>please note that on the practice journal</u>. If a student is having difficulty completing homework or has a large school project (i.e., Science Day) that prevents practice, please contact the director for assistance in temporarily modifying the practice requirements. Please try not to schedule major orthodontic/dental work in the month of a performance/contest/festival.
- Students occasionally tell me that they were "too busy" to practice. Often the "too busy" is because a student is involved in many different types of activities outside of school. It is important to remember that regular, consistent practice time is the key to success in any musical endeavor.
- Students not having a practice record two weeks in a row, or lacking a parent's signature will receive a "Zero" and may not receive a lesson.
- Students practicing two (2) or less times per week will receive a "C" or lower for the week and may not receive a lesson. Students who persist in not practicing may be dropped from the program after a conference with the parent. Students in grades 7 and up who are dropped from the program after the "add/drop" date will receive a grade of "F" for the class.

Primary Texts Used:

- The (Name of Instrument) Student, Level 1 (Elementary) and Level 2 (Intermediate), By Weber/Various Authors, Belwin. Price: approx. \$7.95
- Depending on the instrument (particularly French horn & Percussion) and achievement level students may be asked to purchase other instructional books and material.
- Students may also purchase required method books through the director.

Band Music:

Band music is owned by Westlake Christian Academy and handed out to students in preparation for the various concerts throughout the year. As with textbooks in the classroom, students are responsible for keeping school owned music in good condition. If music is lost or damaged is there a replacement fee based on the current replacement price of the music, including shipping.

Instrument Supplies:

I keep a supply of reeds, oil, grease, and swabs at school and provide them at cost to the students. Prices vary depending upon the instrument. I recommend that woodwind students keep the cost of one reed in their instrument case for use when a new reed is needed.

Instrument Repairs:

Rented Instruments

- **Store Rentals:** Students renting instruments through Quinlan & Fabish Music or a store chosen by the parent are required to have the instrument maintenance agreement offered by the store during the rental period. This avoids additional cost to the family for service during the rental period and the store will provide a loaner for the student to play on during service.
- **Note:** If the instrument is rented through Quinlan and Fabish Music, the director will contact the store to have the instrument serviced and a loaner provided to the student. Parents who choose to rent through other area music stores must contact their provider for instrument loaners, repair and service.

Privately Owned

- Students having instruments owned by the family will be responsible for having the instrument serviced and also having a loaner instrument provided so that instruction can continue.
- It is recommended that all privately owned woodwind instruments and trombones be serviced at least one time per year, preferably in the summer months when school is not in session. Many woodwinds and trombones require a second servicing, depending on the instrument and its use.

School Owned

Repair and maintenance of school owned instruments will be handled by the director. Students will
be taught basic maintenance procedure of the instrument. Loss or damage above what is considered
normal for school use will be the responsibility of the parent.

Insurance:

Privately Owned

- Privately owned instruments must be insured under the parent's homeowner's policy. If your child's
 instrument is valued over \$300.00, it would be a good idea to check your insurance policy to see how
 much coverage is offered for musical instruments.
- <u>Note:</u> Students "forgetting" privately owned instruments at Westlake overnight, during weekends or
 on holidays must remember that their instruments are <u>not covered</u> by school insurance against
 damage, theft or fire.
- Any instrument left at school indicates that the student was not able to practice and band grades will be affected. It is important for students to take their instruments <u>HOME</u> at night.

School Owned

• School owned instruments are insured under Westlake's insurance policy. School owned instruments are also expected to go home at night during the student's participation in the band program. To take

a school owned instrument home for the summer, the student must be re-enrolled at WCA for the following school year.

Intermediate Band Concerts:

Christmastide Concert (December)

• Final rehearsal for this concert will be posted on the music department calendar.

Winter Concert (February)

• Final rehearsal to be announced

Spring Concert (May)

• Final rehearsal for this concert will be posted on the music department calendar.

Competitive Events:

"Little Band Festival" @ North Chicago High School (March)

• All students will be required to attend. This event is held during the school day.

Northshore Music Festival @ Northwestern University (March)

- On Saturday, with performance times running throughout the day.
- For students advanced enough and desirous of solo & ensemble competition. Music for students will be chosen either by the director or student's private instructor. <u>Additional fees apply for this event</u>.

Band Fees:

The price of band fees for full time WCA students and home school students are set by the Board of Trustees annually. There is tuition assistance available for full time WCA students who qualify. Please contact Mrs. Kurtz for further information.

- WCA Students: \$171.00 per year/ \$19 per month (Sept.-May) for the first student in the family.
 \$135 per year / \$15 per month for every student thereafter.
- Homeschool students: \$504 per year / \$56 per month (Sept. May) for the first band student in the family. \$459 per year / \$51 per month for every student thereafter.

Band Director: Mrs. Karen Kurtz

The best way to contact the director is via email: KKurtz@WestlakeChristian.org

Director's school hours:

Mondays 7:30 – 10:30 a.m.

Tuesdays 7:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m.

Wednesdays 7:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m.

Thursdays 7:00 – 12 noon